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ACTION ITEMS RAISED IN THIS MEETING 

CAG in general: all correspondence to DTSC should clearly indicate if contents represent CAG’s official comments or just those of the sender. (p.13)

Mr. Alcarez: Look up what info is available about the Doe Beckman Company (located near BioRad); Doe Beckman made instruments. (p.20)  Rick will give his copy of the RFS Current Conditions report to the UCB Clerical Union rep (Ms. Begin.) (p.31)
Ms. B. Cook: Speak with DTSC toxicologist to determine if the  post-remediation five-year health review, which is typically contained in DTSC adopted orders for sites like Zeneca, are based on published scientific data that detail the health review process and confirm that this process protects human health. (p.16)  DTSC will send hardcopies of DTSC August Update to Carolyn several days before August CAG meeting (p. 33)
Ms. Graves:  Minutes for May, June, July need to be approved at August CAG meeting. (p.4)

Ms. Moreno (UCB): CAG would like to hear from a UCB rep at August CAG meeting about the hazardous cleanup that they are going to go through. (p.34) CAG would like to hear from a UCB rep at August CAG meeting as to what information they share with their employees on the health risks at the RFS, such as the arsenic, etc. (p.36)
Mr. Mosteller: provide an overview of the risk assessment process at the August meeting (might be presented by Michelle King of EKI.) (p.6)  All future site maps submitted to DTSC/CAG should show all historical building footprints and building numbers/names. (p.26)
Ms. Padgett: Followup on legal issues and CAG input (or lack thereof) on DTSC “summaries of violation”. (p.17)  CAG to extend invitation to UCB to send rep to CAG meeting to talk about the hazardous cleanup that they are going to go through. (p.34)
Mr. Robinson: Add “Point of Order” bylaw admendment to August Agenda (p.5) 

Ms. Shipman: At the August CAG meeting, she will report on the specific of the radiological assessment plan for the Zeneca site. (p.26)
Mr. Weiner: Will look into the regulations of “summaries of violation” and report back to the CAG on what input the CAG has on these. (p.17)

PROCEEDINGS 

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  I think we have enough to get started, and if everyone would come in.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  I want to thank you, everyone, for coming.  We have a pretty extensive agenda, a lot of things to cover.  And we're going to go ahead and get started.  First we are going to have the agenda review, and then a process review.  Okay.  So welcome.  Sorry that we are getting started a little bit late.  I just heard from DTSC they'll be here in five minutes.  

MS. PADGETT:  Traffic on the freeway.   

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  So first of all, there are agendas on the table that is a little more detailed than what I write on the chart.  My name is Angela Ridgway.  I'll be the facilitator this evening.  So this evening what we'll be doing is first, as Whitney said, we'll be going through a little bit of the process that we do every time.  Then we will have CAG committee updates.  So Pablo will be giving us the Bylaws Committee update.  Then we'll move on to Cherokee Simeon.  Doug Moesteller will give us an update.  Then we will have an update from DTSC.  They are not here yet.  They will be here by then.  We'll have a Q&A time for both DTSC and CSV.  We're always trying something new, so we'll give that a shot.  Then we are supposed to have an update from BioRad.  And I am sorry.  I don't know your name.  

MR. ROBINSON:  My name Joe Robinson.  We don't have our slides yet.  

MS. RIDGWAY:  Then we will have an update from Joe, and then we'll have a Toxics Committee update, and then we will have public comments and wrap‑up.  And we'll do about a five‑minute break in there.  Okay.  Any last‑minute changes or additions to the agenda at this time?  Okay.  So just to kind of get started, the first thing I wanted to do for your CAG members, I left some things on the table. 

MS. PADGETT:  Can we do a check to make sure everyone can hear you? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Is there anyone that cannot hear me?  Anybody having difficulty hearing me?  Am I speaking okay?  Okay.  So from a process perspective, what I put on the tables, we have some color‑coding going on now.  So we have our CAG purpose.  So we want to make sure everything that we are doing stays grounded in the mission vision and goals.  Okay.  So I did not have enough copies per person, but I had those last time also.  So you should be familiar with those ground rules.  So in our main meeting, we came up with the agreed‑upon ground rules for the CAG.  So I am going to go through and review those again in terms of we want productive verbal dialogue, concise, brief, on topic, and allow others to speak and have equal voice, respect for others, listening to what other people have to say, contributing to CAG efforts.  And that is also outside of this meeting.  And these really should be true for any kind of CAG activities that are going on.  You want to stay on schedule in our meetings.  

We got off to a late start, but we'll try really hard to end on time.  And then I want to have open dialogue with the responsible parties.  And we have responsible parties on the agenda.  So, as always, does everybody agree to the ground rules?  Raise your hand if you agree to abide by these.  Everyone?  No.  Because I will call you on it, you know.  Okay.  And as the facilitator, I will be trying to make sure we are all following the ground rules.  So as part of the ground rules one of the cards ‑‑ so you have a card that has the ground rules on them that is kind of a dark blue teal color.  To help everyone stay on topic, you have your yellow "off topic" cards, so it is basically an "off topic" warning.  So if someone is going down into too much detail or things like that, it is a warning from another member to say, "Hey, let's get back on track."  That is basically what this is saying, let's get back on track.  And the green sheets, I would like to, again, continue to use these because they can be very helpful, especially in capturing your thoughts.  

So as we go forward with the presentations, we are going to try to hold questions so that the presenters can get through their information.  While they're speaking, if you have questions, if you could please write them down and then we can address them during the Q&A, and we probably will have to cut off questions at some point because I know everybody has a lot of questions.  If you have written it down, I can take those and capture those and give those to the presenters so they can get back to you with responses.  

Okay.  So that is our process stuff that we want to follow for the meeting.  Okay.  Any questions about that?  Okay.  So before we go any further, are there any announcements?  Do we need to do minutes approval or anything like that?

MS. GRAVES:  That is a good question.  Did everybody get a copy of the minutes?  I did bring a hard copy for you, Whitney.  But did everybody ‑‑ are people ready to approve, or do you want to postpone that?  How do you want to do this?  Should we make a motion?

MS. PADGETT:  We don't have a quorum to pass it. 

MS. GRAVES:  I thought we did.  So back to you. 

MS. PADGETT:  Maybe you could talk about why so many people aren't here.  They are out of town.  They sent announcements. 

MS. GRAVES:  There weren't that many.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Are there any other announcements by any other CAG members, anything we need to cover before we get started?  Okay.  Next on the agenda, Pablo?

MR. MUNOZ:  Joe will be giving the report. 

MR. ROBINSON:  By default.  Dan is out of town.  Dan is the chairman.  I will stand in.

MS. RIDGWAY:  I was hoping he would let me know.  I thought Pablo was going to do it. 

MR. ROBINSON:  The Bylaws Committee considered two amendments and passed one and tabled one.  The one we passed was a point‑of‑order amendment.  It will work hand in hand with the yellow card that we have.  The second one, the one that we did not pass right away and was tabled, was the censure one, and we are going to reword it.  The point of order is, in a nutshell, in plain English, a way to stop the proceedings right away when we think we are off track.  And anyone can do that.  When that happens, we can also take a straw poll using our yellow cards.  And if all of the CAG members or some of the CAG members ‑‑ we can test to see if we are on track.  If we are not, the facilitator, the chairman, whoever is running the proceedings, can get us back on track.  We don't have the final copies of that bylaw for the point of order.  But we will next time when we have a quorum.  And that is it in a nutshell.  I don't want to spend a whole lot of time on it because we can't get a vote at this meeting, but that is what was decided at the bylaw meeting.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  So will you be taking ‑‑ do you need to take a vote when you have a quorum at hopefully the next meeting?  It is called the point of order?  What do you call it?

MR. ROBINSON:  Point of order, and at any time during the proceedings if a member feels that we are off track, they would simply interrupt the meeting and say, "Point of order, Mr. Chairman or Facilitator," and that would be enough to stop the proceedings, and we would then gauge if we are on track.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  But the CAG needs to vote on this.  Is that what I am understanding?

MR. ROBINSON:  Correct.  That would be next time.

MS. RIDGWAY:  And then the censure one you are taking back to redo, just to capture the key points? 

MR. ROBINSON:  The censure is being reworked, and it might not come back.  If it does come back it would come back in a reworked fashion.

MS. RIDGWAY:  We'll move to the content part.  We have an update.     

MR. MOESTELLER:  I am Doug Moesteller with Cherokee.  And thanks for again this opportunity to talk to the CAG and the members of the public.  I am going to give you a brief update on the status on a number of tasks that we are in the process of completing right now.  And that update is probably going to be between two and five minutes, and then what I would like to do after that is introduce Michelle King from Erler & Kalinowski, and she is going to talk about a removal action work plan.  At the last CAG meeting I suggested that perhaps we could provide an overview of the removal action work plan scheduled for Lot 1, which would be up in this area, and I believe it was generally thought to be good idea.  We thought that we could spend about ten minutes with Michelle providing really a high‑level overview.  And actually I am going to get to that a little bit later.  Really the primary things I want to provide status on are a schedule to where we stand on a couple of things.  Specifically I wanted to let the CAG and the CAG technical consultants know that we did receive comments on Lot 1‑2 RI.  We received them yesterday.  I think it was about 30 pages.  We are still reviewing those comments.  With respect to the Lot 1‑2 RI, we have also received comments from the DTSC on Lots 1 and 2, and we are addressing those comments.  For Lot 3 we're waiting for formal comments to come from DTSC.  And then, again, we are continuing to review technical consultant comments.  

Next is the risk assessment.  And I just want to let everyone know that we are working with the DTSC on the process and procedures.  I did note that the CAG technical consultants memorandum that we received last night did include a number of comments on the risk assessment.  Again, those were things we are reviewing and look forward to discussing how to best address those.  One thing I also want to mention with respect to the risk assessment is that last CAG meeting we talked about potentially ‑‑ we are in July now ‑‑ in August, we could provide an overview of the risk assessment process.  So, again, I guess I will ‑‑ assuming that is okay, we can go ahead and proceed with that or we can discuss whether that is something that the CAG wants to hear or not.  But certainly I will volunteer that and, again, that would be a presentation that Erler & Kalinowski and Michelle King would more than likely make to the CAG.

MS. RIDGWAY:  I am going to ask that question and just kind of get a feel.  Is that what you want them to do next time?

MR. MOESTELLER:  Michelle, put it on your calendar.  Next in the southeast parcel, and that is a piece of land located right here.  And that is something where we have submitted a work plan to DTSC to conduct an investigation.  It is collecting soil and groundwater samples.  We received some comments from the DTSC and we are addressing those comments.  We anticipated we will be providing DTSC with a revised sampling plan next week.  

The lagoon investigation.  This is referred to as the lower lagoon, and this is referred to as the upper lagoon.  I reported last time that we ‑‑ the methodology for collecting the samples in the lower lagoon we had a change.  In fact, first it was going to be a fan boat, but we think it might need to be an air boat to collect those samples.  We are anticipating that the sampling would occur in the end of July.  

And for the upper lagoon in this area, the best way that we think that we can collect the samples in the upper lagoon is actually with a crane.  So it would be something that would be parked on the side that would reach out to the lagoon where we could select the samples.  We anticipate that ‑‑ we are waiting for the availability for that crane type of equipment, so the timing of that investigation is a little bit in flux, but we certainly hope it will be completed by the end of August, ideally between the end of July and mid August.  

Pore water sampling.  That is something that we completed.  The question might be what is pore water sampling.  It is an investigation that we completed in the marshland in here in what is referred to as Habitat Area 1.  Pore water, if you can imagine this, if you fill up a fish tank with marbles, and then you pour water in there, the water that would essentially be between the marbles, that would be what we refer to as pore water.  So to collect a sample you would essentially take all those marbles and then you spin it in a centrifuge, and that allows the water to come out of it because it is very fine material.  We take that and analyze it.  That is a pore water investigation. 

MR. DOTSON:  P‑o‑u‑r? 

MR. MOESTELLER:  P‑o‑r‑e, pore water.  So it is meant to be the pore space, the space between the fine‑grained materials.  So we did collect those samples, and we are waiting for those analytical results to come back.  The marsh revegetation maintenance continues, and, let's see, groundwater monitoring, that is something that is ‑‑ we are required to do on a quarterly basis.  The next groundwater monitoring event is scheduled for the first full week of August.  And I believe that is the week of August 16th, if I recall correctly.  

And within that groundwater sampling event we will include another round of monitoring at our pilot study investigation areas, and those investigation areas are in this general area.  That is where we are testing the remedial technology to see the effectiveness of that.  And now with ‑‑ right now I am going to introduce Michelle King to discuss the removal action work plan.  Just a little bit of background.  Again, you may recall that the removal action work plan is focussed on an area up in here known as Lot 1.  That area's impact has soils that are impacted with polychlorinated biphenyls, PCBs, and then volatile organic compounds, VOC's.  The removal action work plan, we provided a draft copy to the DTSC.  Actually what Michele is going to present is what is in the draft document to DTSC.  DTSC is still reviewing that document.  We are waiting for their comments to come back.  Once we receive their comments then that document would go ‑‑ a fact sheet would be produced regarding the document, and then a 30‑day public comment period would be initiated.  And within that public comment period there would be a public meeting.  So there would be an awful lot of time for review and comment on the document.  

And so with that, Michelle?  

MS. KING:  Hi.  I am Michelle King.  Do you all remember me?  I am with Erler & Kalinowski Technical Consultants Firm, and we have been working with CSV now for about two years on this project.  One of the things that we are working on besides the human health risk assessment that Doug mentioned is the RAW or removal action work plan.  And basically the RAW addresses an area of the northwestern quarter of the site where the site is impacted ‑‑ the soil is impacted with PCBs and VOC's, volatile organic compounds in the soil.  There are also groundwater impacts in the same area, and that is really not the subject of the RAW.  The RAW is focussed on the soil impacts.  

So we have two poster‑boards here.  The first one shows, like I said, we're focussed now just in this little northwest corner of the site.  There is a well here called MW25.  When that well was installed LFR did some soil sampling, and they found levels of PCBs and VOCs that were high enough that the DTSC requested that a removal action workplan be prepared and implemented to mitigate this problem.  LFR characterized the site.  They did step‑out sampling to the south going in this direction to the north and then on either side to try to get an assessment of the extent of the chemicals in the soil.  

And so what these boxes are that you see, these dashed boxes, are where we know contamination is likely to be and in the areas that were identified as necessitating mitigation.  I know it is a very detailed poster, but in effect what it is if you look at this broad area, it is about a 200‑foot‑long area by a 35‑feet‑wide area, the area of concern.  So what is done in the law is you identify where the contaminants are, you then look at what are appropriate types of cleanup levels to address.  

And in this case we are looking at both protection of human health at a residential cleanup standard and a commercial/industrial cleanup standard as well as a leaching to groundwater and volatilization.  So where the volatile chemicals come up into, basically if there were a building put on top of it, into an indoor air space.  

So we are looking at all these different pathways and want to establish cleanup levels for this project.  Then what we did was evaluated different types of alternatives to clean up the site.  And the primary alternatives or options, if you will, of how you want to clean it up were to excavate it all out and basically clean up to either residential standards or commercial industrial standards.  And the other option was to do a combination of a little bit of excavation or basically removing the soil and disposing of it off‑site and then capping some the remaining soil that was impacted.  

So, effectively, there were essentially two options.  One is to dig it all out and haul it to a permanent landfill.  The other is dig part of it out and then cap the remaining stuff in place.  

So with the RAW you evaluate the pros and cons of these options, and with that the preferred alternative that is being recommended is to excavate all of the impacted soil down to a residential standard because that provides the most flexibility for the project the most cost‑effective in this particular case for this project.  

So these boxes are showing at this point the assumed excavation depths for each of these different little boxes on here.  So then we move into how do we implement this in a way to make sure that human health and the environment is protected and people aren't impacted during the removal actions.  We know that the UC property is literally right next door in this location.  

So what this aerial photo shows, basically, is you have outlined the same area, but it gives you a little bit more overview of the site.  You can see 580 along here, and this street is South 46th.  That is where the boundary is between the CSV site and the UC property.  And the excavation area is here.  The idea is that the soil that is excavated will hopefully just be loaded directly into trucks.  And then the trucks will move over and will be contaminated, and so the contractor has a plan to basically clean off the wheels of the trucks and clean off the trucks before they leave the site.  

Then they will move out 47th and enter onto the freeway to go of the disposal facility on the Regatta exit.  Over here is where the trucks are staged, so while they are waiting for the excavation that is happening here ‑‑ you can only load one truck at a time, so the trucks will wait in this part of the site and move through the site like this.  When we do this work the contractor will be selected.  They'll have a health and safety plan.  They will have a dust plan, a decon type plan where they clean the trucks and the personnel.  There will be an air monitoring plan that will also be implemented.  

I don't know if you can see them from the distance, but the blue squares show the air monitoring stations.  We will be doing quite a comprehensive monitoring program for dust and volatile chemicals and specific compounds.  We'll be looking for things like the PCBs themselves, arsenic and the volatile compounds themselves and even some of the pesticides and such.  So the RAW will outline all of the different types of plans to be prepared by the contractor and present all of the details of the air monitoring plan.  

Just to emphasize a little more on the air monitoring, the wind predominantly flows this way from the southern part of the site to the north.  We have what we call an upwind station that is supposedly getting background emissions away from the actual excavation area.  And we have one between the excavation and the U.C. building ‑‑ I don't know that building ‑‑ the former forest product building.  Then there is one between the excavation and the freeway ‑‑ in other words, to see what would be leaving the site potentially to go across the freeway to the residential areas when the excavation is complete.  We will collect soil samples to verify that we have met the cleanup levels, the excavation will then be backfilled with clean imported soils.  And then we'll ‑‑ three to six months after the excavation is complete we are going to do soil gas sampling to make sure that we don't have a residual issue for the volatiles that could come up into future buildings.  Then if that all works out okay we write a petition for it.  That is basically the process.  Hopefully that wasn't too fast.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  So the suggested process was to wait for DTSC to get their updates, but I will ask you if you want to modify that.  I mean, I know this is important stuff, so let's take two questions and then we'll do the ‑‑ we have a couple of minutes.  Go ahead.

MR. ALCAREZ:  Okay.  When I worked for the Richmond Field Station I planted approximately 80 trees across here on the other side of the road from where you are talking about.  This is where PG&E used to store their mixtures for the cooling on the overhead wires during the old days.  But I planted 80 trees in here, and all of them died.  But when I dug the holes to plant the trees, I'd go down two feet and sometimes I just leave it and, you know, come back the next day to plant them.  But the water would come up, you know, to the top.  So what I am saying is during all of this period this water has been coming back and forth through that, through all of this, and it came from across the street also.  So there is underground water in there.  And when you guys go to excavate, you are going to hit water real quick, two or three feet.  And it will come up and it is all ‑‑ in those days it was, like, a brown‑colored water.  And if you left it there long it looked like it would coagulate.  You know, it hardened on the top.  And you could peel it back.  And there was filthy muck on the bottom.  I am warning you ahead of time.  

MS. PADGETT:  That is a good point.  Based on the data we have, the water tends to be 10 feet below ground surface.  There could be some localized water, and the contractor will actually be prepared to handle water.

MS. RIDGWAY:  We're going to do two questions, and then come back unless I hear something different. 

MS. PADGETT:  I am hoping at some point, when we come back, we can have one of our consultants talk about our concerns for the need for a comprehensive health risk assessment before we get started on this as well as the need to look at the radionuclides before we move into the RAW.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Can you write that on a piece of paper?

MS. PADGETT:  I will write it on a piece of paper.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  So it's 7:16.  That is our time limit at this point.  We are going to have public comment at the end. 

Members of the audience? 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Question.  Do you have a wind rose to show the predominant wind direction for a 12‑month period for this site?  

MS. KING:  Yes.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Do you have it available for everybody here? 

MS. KING:  I do not have the wind rose with me, but there is a weather station at the adjacent Richmond Field Station, and we have several years' were worth of data taken on an hourly basis and the wind rose. 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  So you would know where the predominant wind direction is during the summer, during the winter, and then we'll determine the best time to do these excavations based on ‑‑ 

MS. KING:  Even seasonally the predominant wind direction is to the north.  It is amazing.  It is ‑‑

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  January and August the same?  

MS. KING:  Pretty similar.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  So you will provide wind rose for everyone as a handout?  

MS. KING:  It is not wind rose. 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  The second question is the disposal facility.

MS. RIDGWAY:  We need to move on.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Where is the disposal facility?  That is a quick question.

MS. RIDGWAY:  DTSC is going to give their update.  We will have time for public comment at the end.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Is the waste staying in Richmond? 

MR. MUNOZ:  Ma'am, we have to move forward with the meeting.

MS. RIDGWAY:  We will have public comment at the end.  You can ask the questions at the end.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I am asking a question and looking for an answer.

MS. RIDGWAY:  We will have time at the end for question and answer.  Barbara Cook?  

MS. COOK:  Hello.  It's been a long time since I have been here. 

MS. PADGETT:  We are glad to see you. 

MS. COOK:  Okay.  There are people here who I have not met.  Let me introduce myself.  My name Barbara Cook.  I work at the Department of Toxic Substance Control.  I hold, actually, two hats now.  I am the branch chief of the Northern California Coastal Cleanup Operation which is responsible for the projects in the Bay Area which includes this project.  I am also the acting division chief for the statewide cleanup operation.  So, ultimately, I am responsible for the state for investigation and cleanup of toxics.  

I believe you have the status report.  Okay.  Let me read the first paragraph.  On June 27th, 2007, DTSC issued a summary of violations for both Stauffer/Zeneca and the University of California.  The summary of violations was for both the Zeneca former Stauffer Chemical site and the University Richmond Field Station.  A copy of both of those SOVs and the letters that are accompanying them can be viewed at the DTSC webpage.  The status report gives you the location of the web page.  It is basically www.dtsc.ca.gov.  And then you are going clicking to find the site near you.  You basically do a search for Richmond, and you look for either Zeneca Richmond or University of California, and within "Community Involvement" you will find these. 

The annual inspection reports ‑‑ formal instruction reports will follow with the summary of violations within 65 days.  I will give the general department policy.  DTSC's policy is that we do not comment on any ongoing investigation on any enforcement action.  So any questions you have tonight, the answer will be, "There is no comment.  DTSC has no comment."  So I can repeat that all night long, but I would just ask ‑‑ it's a waste of everybody's time.  

As part of this also within this DTSC has included a copy of the DTSC enforcement response policy, which is also on our web page.  I have given you the address to track down that.  In addition, with the issuance of the summary of violations, the current site health risk conditions at this site have not changed as it relates to people who work on the property or live or work near the site.  And there is no immediate public health threat.  I want to state that.  With regards to ongoing activities ‑‑ how much time do I have? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  You have 15 minutes.

MS. COOK:  Basically a lot of the ongoing activities are continuing.  We have the maintenance activities at the East Stege Marsh.  DTSC ‑‑ as Doug has indicated, we provide the comments on the site investigation alone for the lagoon area.  And we are expecting those comments to be coming in.  We also are in the process of reviewing the draft removal action work plan.  Actually it is sitting in that bag there.  So I have to get to that tonight.  So we are going to provide those comments and, as Doug said, lay out the process and procedures. 

One of the other additional aspects as a result of some of the initial type of feedback and some issues with regard to looking at landfill disposal requirement activities, there will be some additional sampling that will be taken in the area, so if you are already covering that ‑‑ we will issue a work notice, but there will be additional sampling collected in the area.  

DTSC has completed its review on the comments with regard to the south parcel area that Doug has also described to you as well as sampling will be conducted in the East Stege Marsh area.  So a lot of this is repeating itself.  I don't think there is anything else in the next 30 days with regards to that.  Can I move on to the next?  

Harbor Front site.  DTSC is reviewing a draft monitoring well installation report that is being prepared by the Department's contractor.  And that sampling is to help us better get an idea of where the contamination is.  DTSC's environmental consultant, Weiss, is also looking at preparing an investigation with regard to the Harbor Front site as well.  So that deals with the harbor.  

U.C. Richmond Field Station.  DTSC is reviewing the current condition ‑‑ oh, I do have one question on Zeneca.  This is actually a question to you, Dr. Esposito.  Yesterday I received two e‑mail messages from you, one at (inaudible) and one at 7:00 o'clock at night.  I first would like to ask, they are basically identical, right? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Yes.  And one of them has PDF, and the other didn't.

MS. COOK:  The other aspect is that the documents, as they were sent, looked to me as a document that was provided to the CAG for the review and approval so ‑‑ well, for me it kind of puts it in a very interesting issue.  I need to understand whether these are the CAG's official comments or are these a preliminary draft of comments so that we can ‑‑

DR. ESPOSITO:  May I answer?

MS. COOK:  In the future if there are the Department's comments, I would ask your letter somehow or another address that and let us know they are the CAG's official comments.  

DR. ESPOSITO:  The comments that I addressed to you are from our technology support group, Treadwell and Rollo.  They are discussed, approved and distributed to the CAG.  So we have completed one round of tests.  And that has been approved.  

MS. COOK:  So it is the CAG's official comments?

DR. ESPOSITO:  Yes, and for your information. 

MS. COOK:  I would ask that in the future your note, not necessarily your consultant's note, be somehow or another recognized that they are the CAG's official comments because the way it was addressed it was unclear.  

DTSC is reviewing the current condition report for the U.C. Richmond Field Station.  The report contains the information on current historical property summary for previous site investigation and information on that.  DTSC received it from the CAG and will be considering their comments on the report.  Do you have any additional comments, sir? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  We have no additional comments.

MS. COOK:  Okay.  The next thing is on the U.C. Richmond Field Station.  They have submitted what is called a time‑critical removal memorandum that addresses elevated levels of arsenic that has been found near the forest project laboratory, the wood treatment laboratory.  The arsenic that was found in the surface, they basically observed in six inches about 1300 milligrams of arsenic and next down to 12 and 30 is 650.  

These levels are well above acceptable limits.  The area that is in this area is open for a lot of people to use the site, so the Department is going to be looking at additional time‑critical removal because we consider this a potential imminent threat to the people that are at the complex.  It is looking at 85 cubic yards of soil to be removed dealing with arsenic.  While the area is currently fenced off and not used, and it does represent a public health threat.  

The next statement is DTSC, while reviewing this, will ultimately approve it, and the work will immediately begin.  This is somewhat different than a removal action work plan.  This is somewhat different than a remedial action work plan.  Because the Department feels that the level of arsenic represents an immediate public health threat, the work will follow the DTSD protocols for time‑critical removals.  We will issue a public notice the same day that we approve the plan and that work will begin.  You have the ability to comment on the document, but it does not go through a formal public comment period.  

Okay.  BioRad Laboratories, and they are here tonight for your presentation, is continuing to do a pilot study.  I am just going to allow them to give a presentation with regards to the overall activities.  Marina Bay.  DTSC is in the process of scheduling a meeting with the master developer for that property to deal with the outstanding issues.  Sherry, we got your e‑mail message.  (Inaudible).  I wasn't aware of that.  The first question that you laid out dealt with construction in the last two to three months of the grade (inaudible) the structure on the waterfront area around Area T.  I have to send somebody out there to go look at that.  You wanted to know the reasons why we require a sampling well in Area T.  Actually, that was included in the removal action work plan, so it was part of the overall work plan. 

MS. PADGETT:  All three?

MS. COOK:  I think so.  And the purpose of it is that we already had documented basically petroleum hydrocarbons in the underlying water ‑‑ that is not nice.  Can you wait another six months until the hair comes all the way back ‑‑ because it has petroleum hydrocarbons there.  So that is what the purpose of the monitoring there is.  The relationship between DTSC and the contractor work that is doing work along the Marina Bay Parkway and the Spinnaker Way tennis courts, no, we are not aware of that, but that area is not covered under any language covered, so as far as I am aware there is no problems in there.  I have no documentation to show that there is contamination in that area.  And dealing with the stockpile removal, I think that is the purpose why we are meeting with the master developer, hopefully next week.  

Stege Property Pistol Range.  Union Pacific Railroad is drafting a removal action work plan, and I will be the first one to admit that I know that six months ago, when I was here the last time, I actually said the same thing.  Union Pacific was in the process of trying to sell the property, so every time they had a real estate guy to walk by they put the project on hold.  So that deal fell through, and they have ‑‑ they changed the contractor, so now their new ‑‑ their latest contractor has to bring the project back ‑‑ get the person back up to speed to put together that document.  So I need to go back and figure out where that stands.  

Blair Landfill.  Union Pacific is going to be submitting a soil gas sampling plan to look at the contamination there and make sure there is no soil gas problems associated with that.  So that document will be coming in hopefully in the next couple of months for the year.  

And I guess I have one last announcement.  Next month's meeting, August ‑‑ I assume it is August 9th since I think that is the second Thursday of the month ‑‑ DTSC will not be able to attend that meeting.  Basically all of us are out of town.  A number of us are actually out of the country.  So I ‑‑ there is just nobody there.  We will prepare the written status report, and we will provide it.  We will be back in September.  But, I am sorry, a number of us have plane reservations, and I didn't think about this when I was setting out my trip.  So nobody will be coming from DTSC because of that.  There are other questions.  I am not quite sure if you want me to answer these questions that have come up ‑‑ and that have been raised by parties.  Do you want me to address some of those now? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  When you say questions, do you have these questions?  Were they submitted to you or questions here? 

MS. COOK:  Ms. Graves sent them. 

MS. PADGETT:  I had questions.

MS. COOK:  You had sent six questions? 

MS. GRAVES:  I have forgotten.

MS. RIDGWAY:  You sent the questions from the last meeting that you got out of the minutes.  So we can ‑‑ let's do a Q&A there from what you presented.  

MS. COOK:  There is one question that I do know the answer to.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Go ahead and give it.

MS. COOK:  The question that has been raised by this group is the desire to have us upload onto the Envirostor database all of the documentation that this CAG has provided to DTSC.  Basically the answer is, no, we will not do that.  The Envirostor is set up by site‑specific.  It is basically documents that DTSC generates or submitted to clients.  We have an obligation to ensure the information that is provided to us is with regards to the site.  And a lot of the comments and things given out here are a lot of information that is ‑‑ there is a lot of information, a lot of information that we are concerned that if we ended up bringing all of the CAG documentation into the Envirostor it would basically result in hundreds and hundreds of documents, and all of the staff people would get upset because they can't find anything because there are so many documents.  

What DTSC would like to bring up is the fact that between this group and the Cherokee/Simeon Venture Group you have one of the tasks and agreements that laid out are to establish a webpage that allows you to put those documents on the webpage.  What the Department is willing to do as part of our process is creating a link to your webpage so that people can access your documents as part of the site and not necessarily put them in the Envirostor.  I wanted to remind you that is one of the tasks in the agreement, and it is something that I hope each of you will look at doing because we cannot have 1‑, 2‑, 300 documents ‑‑ everything that has been submitted to us.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I have a question.  The question that I am posing has to do with some recent work that the Toxics Committee has begun.  We understand that the procedures that DTSC uses vis a vis remediation, covenants, et cetera, are logical and aimed towards protecting human health over the long‑term.  What we would like to know is is there any published scientific data in any journals or books in which there has been a retrospective study that examines human health per se and demonstrates, yes or no, that there has been a favorable impact.  I understand that this is not in the legislation which empowers you to do that.  In fact, when I read it the legislation says these protocols are based on no previous studies.  They're a priori, they are logical, they make good sense, but have they been tested?  It's been a long time since you have been in business and around the country, not just DTSC.  We'd like to know if they are really protective of human health.

MS. COOK:  I need to understand, are we discussing the process, the protocols that we follow?  I am needing a little more. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Let me be very specific.  In the adopted order, let's say, for the Richmond Field Station or to any other responsibility party, it says, "After a five‑year period, when construction has occurred and the area has been inhabited, the responsible party must return and determine whether or not the operations that they are undertaking had a positive effect on human health, whether or not in the environment, similarly, contamination has been controlled.  Human health is mentioned, but I don't think you are referring to putting a stethoscope on it and testing somebody's blood pressure.  I think what you are talking about is the environmental health rather than human health per se.  What I am interesting is knowing is whether there are any published medical data that say by, let's say, pre‑epidemiological or post‑epidemiological studies, human health has been affected positively.  

MS. COOK:  I will have to get back to my toxicologist.  I am sure you are asking for documents specifically.  The Department does do five‑year reviews.  It does evaluate the remedy that was selected.  It evaluates it from a modification that is taking place in regards to protocol.  I think what we are going to have to do is in addition to going back ‑‑ since the agency that you are looking at is primarily ASTDR, as to whether or not they have done that type of research, since they are primarily a federal agency, we will have to go back and try to see what ‑‑ I have to go back and ask them what the answer to that is. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Thank you.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Before we move on, we are going to do question and answer for both DTSC and CVA.  So and we are going to try to balance this out. 

MR. MUNOZ:  My question is in regards to what Michelle King was presenting to us a minute ago about the land they are preparing to remediate up at the top of the Zeneca site.  What impact has that had, the fact that that land is upstream from the rest of the Zeneca site and is still contaminated, what impact does that have on the land that has already been remediated to certain levels and also what impact will that have once they go in and start digging everything out and start disturbing those soils in terms of the other things surrounding that area? 

MS. COOK:  One is the distances.  One of the primary aspects of how we look at remediation is to reduce the source area.  This is identified as a source area of contamination.  One of the other issues associated with this is that the groundwater flow with regards to this area is not this way.  It actually crosses over onto ‑‑ it crosses over to Richmond Field Station.  So that does not have the mechanism in place to protect them, as you know.  And there has been a lot of comments and questions and concerns about the forest building property in the past.  

The Department is looking at the fact that we have a source area.  It is moving into an area that doesn't necessarily have the control measures in place.  So it is important to remove that source area for us.  The ‑‑ have I answered your question? 

MR. MUNOZ:  Yes. 

MS. PADGETT:  I have three questions.  I am not sure there is time to answer all three.  The first has to do with the arsenic on the U.C. Richmond Field Station and the recent construction on J Way, I think it is, and the proximity of that arsenic that has now been confirmed and that recent construction.  And maybe you don't know the answer to that tonight.

MS. COOK:  I probably don't.  I am not quite sure where that is, so we will get back to you. 

MS. PADGETT:  The second one has to do with wanting to hear from our technical consultants about our reservations relating to going forward with the RAW on the Lot 1 PCB/VOC area and our hesitation with going forward as it relates to the need for health risk assessment for the entire property, or maybe they can speak to that.  The third relates to the orders that you issued, that DTSC issued and our need, if possible the need for some legal review.  And maybe we could hear from Peter Weiner, and maybe you could talk to us about whether the CAG has any role in this or whether there is anything we can do ourselves since you can't give us any information.  We understand the reasons that you cannot.

MS. COOK:  These are the orders that were issued within the last ‑‑

MS. PADGETT:  That is right, the recent ones.

MS. COOK:  They are not orders.  They are what are defined as summaries of violation.  

MS. PADGETT:  Excuse me.  I misspoke. 

MS. COOK:  They are referred to as summaries of violation.  And how I ‑‑ so that is the document, and I would refer you back to the Department policy and procedures to lay out the processes that we go through. 

MS. PADGETT:  How about the other question?  Could we hear from them? 

MS. COOK:  I would refer back to the facilitator.

MS. SHIPMAN:  Sherry, would you mind if we speak about it in the Toxics Committee? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  You are going to address these at the Toxics Committee?

MS. SHIPMAN:  The second one.  

MS. PADGETT:  How about the legal issues? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  I have this captured here, so I know I don't have the detail that you mentioned.  And so you can write it.  So we have it.  And I will make sure that I capture it and send it back out.

MR. DOTSON:  She had mentioned something specific about Peter Weiner making a response.  I don't see it up there.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Sorry.  That is the other thing that goes with the legal.  Let's see if there are other questions.  Are there other questions for CVC or DTSC?  If you have others that you want submitted to DTSC or CSV, if you write them down I will take those again.  Okay.  So thank you.  Let's go ahead and do Peter's ‑‑ if that is what you want to focus on, Peter's comment.  

MR. WEINER:  I am not sure I have a comment.  I would be happy to look into it for you and let you know more about the process by looking at guidance and regulations with referencing and let you know more at the next meeting if that is okay.  I could write something up. 

MR. DOTSON:  Very good.  Okay.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  So on the schedule now, if there is no other questions, we have a five‑minute break scheduled.  So we are on track at this point.  So five minutes.  There are refreshments, coffee and water, in the back.  And I would like to thank you, CVR, for sponsoring the refreshments.

(Recess.)  

MS. RIDGWAY:  The break is over we are going to move on with the next topic at hand.  Okay.  So the next is BioRad, and then you are after BioRad.  Sorry. 

MS. SHIPMAN:  That's okay.

MS. RIDGWAY:  So the next topic on the agenda, BioRad is here to give us an update.  Joe Griebstein is going to give us an update.  

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  Hi.  My name is Joe Griebstein.  I am the environmental manager for BioRad Laboratories.  And actually my job is easy.  I am going to introduce Nancy Vise, who is our project manager from GeoSyntec Consultants.  She's going to talk to you about what we have been doing with our treatment study for our site.  We will be happy to answer any questions at the end.

MS. VICE:  We handed out the color handout, hopefully you all got it.  And we came and talked to you guys months ago, talking about what we were proposing to do, and now we just want to give you an update on where we are in our remediation at the BioRad facility.  I am Nancy Vise from GeoSyntec Consultants here in Oakland, and we are the consultants for BioRad.  The first slide shows you where the project is, and we are west of 580, a fairly small parcel compared to the other two, at Zeneca and the Richmond Field Station.  

The second slide talks about where we are, how we got here.  We have been doing investigations at the site since 1996, under the Permit by Rule Program at DTSC.  We're working with Barbara and Lynn on the site mitigation unit.  The soil and groundwater at the BioRad facility are contaminated with VOCs.  Our primary contaminant is chloroform, which was used in their process.  The soil of the site is impacted beneath the buildings in two areas.  

And the next slide is a map that shows where the contamination is on the site.  We have groundwater at a depth of 10 feet at this site, and we have found contamination, primarily chloroform, down to a depth of about 40 feet.  The next slide shows that impacted area. 

MS. PADGETT:  Could you speak up? 

MS. VICE:  You can't hear me? 

MS. PADGETT:  Barely.  

MS. VICE:  I'll yell into this.  So the map shows the impacted area, both the soil and the groundwater.  And this map has north going to the right.  So you can see Meeker Slough on the left side of this map.  Our investigations tell us that the groundwater contamination basically is flowing from north to south.  Fortunately it has not gone across Meeker Slough.  We have done a lot of work on the other side of the Slough, and all of our work shows there are no VOCs on the other side of the Slough.  Unfortunately we do have some VOCs in the Slough from time to time, which is why we are going ahead with our groundwater remedy at the site.  

Right now we are in the process of doing a groundwater treatability study.  We are extracting groundwater from two locations and treating it and discharging it to the sanitary sewer.  The next slide is a picture of this treatment plant that we have now built.  We have completed the construction in May of 2007.  Like I said, we are pumping from two wells treating the water and discharging it to the sewer.  

The next slide shows a control panel for the groundwater construction treatment system.  It also shows a little blowup of our computer that we can log into in our control panel and track all of the operations of our treatment plant.  On the next slide I am talking a little bit about what we found so far.  And we have some very good results so far.  The map that I have included here shows the water levels that we are getting from our groundwater extraction ‑‑ and you can see where we are getting good draw down around our two extraction wells that are shown with the little cross symbols on the map.  The map also shows where our treatment area is relative to these extraction wells. 

And so far we have seen no negative impact to Meeker Slough.  We have been observing the water level in the Slough, and we have also been measuring the general water quality parameters in the Slough.  And everything is looking very good so far.  Everything is within the ranges of prior to our extraction.  The next picture, actually, is a picture of the Slough at low tide, and you can see that it has still got a lot of water in it.  We are actually only extracting a very small amount of water, about three gallons per minute total, but it is enough to capture the water we need to capture and remove it from the system and treat it.  

The next slide shows a chart of some of the things that we are tracking as we are doing our treatability study.  As I said, we are pumping about three gallons a minute, one and a half gallons a minute per well.  We have extracted about 160,000 gallons at this point and treated that water.  We have no VOCs in our discharge water.  It is all being captured by our carbon filters.  And at this point we removed about 200 pounds of VOCs.  Now we expect that rate of removal to drop.  It's very typical to have very high rates of removal at the very beginning and they tend to drop off over time.  

We are going to be looking at that, how these rates drop over time and other potential treatment alternatives for the groundwater.  The next page talks about our next steps.  As I said, our treatment study is underway, and we will be continuing our monitoring program.  It is a six‑month study.  We will be giving DTSC a construction completion report at the end of this month that describes the system, how it was put in, and our first month of operating data.  And then we will be submitting a study ‑‑ a report on the entire study at the end of November once we have gotten our six months of operation.  And at that time we will also be putting together a fact sheet that describes everything that we have done to date.  So I think that is it for our presentation unless there are any questions.  

MS. GRAVES:  How long has BioRad been at this site?  

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  We've been at the Richmond site about 50 years.  

MR. ALCAREZ:  There is no record past '96?  Is that what you are saying?  I worked there in the '60s at BioRad, and I am a plumber.  And some of the pipes that you guys had in the '60s were connected to the storm drains and the sewer.  There was no chemical waste at that time at all, no storage tanks or anything.  Nothing was being pumped out.  I know the experiments went on, and the other thing was that I was ‑‑ you know, I had to have a clearance back then to work there.  

And I was just wondering, there is no record at all there ‑‑ there is no record at all that goes past '96 ‑‑ I mean, back to, say, the '60s?

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  The reference on our slide is that we started the remediation investigation in '96.  

MR. ALCAREZ:  It came in in 1993.  That was the Fire Protection Act, so everybody had to come up to date then.  What I am referring to is back then it was ‑‑ there was just a lot of stuff that went down that wasn't allowed to bring in inspectors or anything at any my work.  So that's why I was worried about that spot.  I am not blaming you guys because you guys are a lot younger than me, but the people that were there, you know, it was like you couldn't do this and couldn't do this.  

And also there was a plant across the street called Doe Beckman.  And Doe Beckman made instruments.  And we have never encountered Doe Beckman at all, but I plan on looking that up.  

MR. GRIEBSTEIN:  Okay.

MR. LINSLEY:  It looks like you say you removed 100 percent of the VOCs by your carbon treatment.

MS. VICE:  Right. 

MR. LINSLEY:  Why are you looking for other alternative treatments?  

MS. VICE:  Because it is very expensive.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Any other questions?

MR. MUNOZ:  So based on the amount of cleanup you have done so far and the water that you have pumped, how much more, or what percentage would you say you have cleaned so far of what is there?

MS. VICE:  You know, we really don't know.  I would say it is a small percentage.  This is just the beginning, really, of remediation.  And right now we are just making sure that by extracting groundwater and treating it we are not causing any other problems to the Slough or anything else.  So, I mean, to answer your question, I would say it is a very small percent.  You don't disagree with me, do you?

MS. PADGETT:  So we could assume that it would take five years, ten years at the current pumping action to ‑‑ it could take a very long time?

MS. VICE:  It could take a very long time.  What we are going to be looking at down the road is what other alternatives we have and how long each of those alternatives will take.  This action was taken to quickly get out there and stop the flow to the slough.  And so that is what we are doing.  And we are looking at other treatment alternatives because this is a very expensive option.  Carbon filters are a very expensive way to deal with it.  We are going to be looking at other alternatives for treatment.  We are also going to be looking at other in situ remedies that might work out at the site over the long term.  But our immediate goal was to get out there and stop this flow to the creek.  So I can't ‑‑ I don't know how long it is going to take at this point.  We are going to be looking at that.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Any more questions?  Okay.  Thank you.  So the next topic is DTSC ‑‑ I'm sorry.  Toxics Committee update.  So Michael and Dorinda.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I see there are some new faces.  I am Michael Esposito, and I chair the Toxics Committee.  Within that committee we have a Technology Support Subcommittee.  The work with that committee is facilitated by funding from Cherokee Simeon Ventures, helped by DTSC's cooperation, and basically originated by the efforts of Peter Weiner, Doug Moesteller and Ranchod Sanjay.  So this is a milestone in the way that community advisory groups operate.  And so far I think it is going very well.  Our technical consultants are here this evening, Dorinda Shipman from Treadwell & Rollo and Adrienne LaPierre from Iris Environmental.  And both will answer questions after Dorinda gives you an update on their first body of work.  Dorinda? 

MS. SHIPMAN:  Thank you, Michael, and good evening.  Thanks for having us here tonight.  We wanted to give you an overview of our work to date.  And our work started in May.  We did a site walk and a kick‑off with members of CAG.  And we were officially contracted to start work at the end of April, at which time our main priority was to do a peer review and comment on the Lots 1 and 2 and Lot 3 IR reports.  So we began work, which also included some background information.  As many of you know, there is a lot of information about the Zeneca site.  So we looked also at the current conditions report, and we then met with members of the Toxics Committee in mid May to give them a feel for the preliminary findings of our review.  

And we knew we had an upcoming kick‑off with Cherokee Simeon and EKI, their consultants, and LFR to get more information on the work they had done to date.  And at that time we brought up our concerns which were also outlined in the cover letter to RI comments.  But our main concerns were in regards to the approach to the risk assessment, the sub‑surface model development, and the adequacy of the data collected as part of the ‑‑ before and as part of the RI work.  We wanted to get a good understanding of subsurface conditions and pathways versus potential source areas and the soil gas and soil data collected.  

We also had materials regarding radiological assessment, and following the June 8th meeting DTSC provided us with the March 2007 report which LFR did in response to some DTSC comments on radiological concerns.  And we still had a number of questions remaining.  Now, at the June 8th meeting LFR and EKI gave us a good idea of how the risk assessment was proceeding and also information on the remedial action work plan that they were doing for the Lot 1 VOC and PCB area.  

And as we saw that this RAW would be completed in August of this year, and yet we still had concerns with the radiological assessment and the data that had been collected, this led us to talk with Barbara and write a letter dated July 3rd which really brought these radiological questions up.  And we, at that point, knew that DHS was working with DTSC to direct a historical radiological site assessment.  But as we talked about on the June 8th meeting with CSV, we were hoping to start technical meetings which focused on issues like the radiological assessment, like the risk assessment.  And the first one of those meetings will be taking place tomorrow, and that will be focussed on the radiological assessments.  

So we don't want to give the impression that we don't feel like the cleanup of the PCBs and the VOCs aren't important, because we do agree that taking care of potentially health‑threatening sources of contamination is important.  But we want to make sure it is done in a health‑protective manner.  So, again, we hope that getting some answers to some of the radiological questions would help us feel better about CSV proceeding with the RAW at the Lot 1 PCB/VOC area.  

As you know, we completed our review just this past week, and our detailed comments are in the handout that Michael Esposito has provided.  So if we can provide any additional detail on that or answer any other questions, we'd be happy to do so.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Dorinda and Adrienne have provided a three‑page memorandum on their first body of work.  That will be available at the next CAG meeting in bound form. 

MS. SHIPMAN:  Yes, Sherry?

MS. PADGETT:  Could you talk about what it means to break up a health risk assessment for the Lot 1 PCB area compared to the health risk assessment for the whole Zeneca area and what it means to have one for a single area versus the whole area?

MS. SHIPMAN:  I will let Adrienne, who is providing our risk assessment toxicological support, respond to that.

MS. LAPIERRE:  I think it is as much a question ‑‑ questions that we have as to how the different pieces are going to fit together and a lack of understanding and a clarity or a lack of understanding on our part since we haven't the detailed technical risk assessment.  However, it is what the thinking is, and the plan is for looking at site‑wide risks from multiple compounds, multiple media for all of the different populations versus risks associated basically focusing on one small area with a few of the primary compounds.  

So I think as much as anything it is a lack of clarity of how the pieces are all going to come together to ensure that we know what all of the risks are, that we are adequately cleaning up the areas that need to be cleaned up, that we are protecting the community in the process, and at the end of the day we have a health‑protective environment. 

And think in the Lot 1 VOC RAW, what kind of struck us are two things, really.  One, gee, we still have these characterization questions and we are proceeding ‑‑ seems like we are proceeding with the RAW where we still don't really know what the radiological issues are.  So if we don't really know that, how do we know that during the process of cleanup we are going to be adequately protecting the people.  And then couple of other things, gee, if we haven't fully quantitatively evaluated the risks, and just this one example, if there are some pesticides in that area, but the targets are the PCBs and VOCs, are we going to be in the position where we have to go back later and do the additional remediation in the area.  And we don't know that until after the comprehensive evaluation is done.  

And I think, actually, some of these questions, the hierarchy of concerns will be hopefully be clarified with some subsequent technical meetings that put it in perspective.  Again, it is not quite understanding the thinking of how the pieces are going to fit together.

MS. SHIPMAN:  Any other questions?

DR. CLARK:  A point of information.  I don't have any question on what you said so far.  My concern is the last meeting where it was reported about the experiments on the nuclear stuff over at the site.  Okay.  And I think DTSC said they were going to be looking into that.  Do we have any follow‑up on that, because the bottom line, as far as I am concerned, is that that is outrageous.  You know, like I mentioned last time, Ethel Dotson, who is on that committee, has been raising the issue a number of times.  Practically everyone made it seem like she was crazy, like she didn't know what she was talking about.  Then all of a sudden you find out about the ‑‑ this is on point.

DR. ESPOSITO:  May I answer your question? 

MS. PADGETT:  We have been talking about it.

DR. ESPOSITO:  May I answer your question?

DR. CLARK:  Let me finish.  I don't know about the cards, but this on point.  So what I want to find out is where is the follow‑up on that.  I think that we need a full‑scale investigation on that, a report, a full‑scale detailed report on what they were doing there, who it was affecting, and the potential health impacts.  And this committee needs to get that information or if we don't get it we need to request that our congressman, George Miller, work with us to get that information.  Because the West County Toxics Coalition is not going to let it go.  And all these cowards around, if you don't want to address it, you will be dealt with also.   

DR. ESPOSITO:  Henry, I am going to address the issue ‑‑ I understand, but we are moving on.

MR. MUNOZ:  Out of respect for everyone else that is participating in the meeting, that is all I ask.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Let me first of all thank you, Dorinda and Adrienne, for your comments.  

DR. CLARK:  Who are you saying that is disrespecting somebody? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Excuse me.  I am sorry.  I am talking now, Henry.  You have to give me a chance. 

DR. CLARK:  I am not talking to you.  I am talking to him.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Michael is trying to answer the question.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I am trying to answer the question courteously, and I think you will be interested.  Now, first of all, thank you folks.  I'd like to ask you, there is a summary sheet which I gave out, it is a Toxics Committee summary.  But I would like you to turn to the page that looks like this.  And that is what I am going to talk about for a moment.  You can read the rest of the toxics summary report of what we have done.  Now one of the things that struck me very strongly in reading current condition reports and remedial investigation reports for the Zeneca site was that included in the list of radionuclides.  Included in the list of radionuclides are the following:  

A group of man‑made radionuclides.  These are not naturally occurring.  They are Americium 241 and 243, Cobalt 58 and 60, and Europium 152 and 154.  Now Europium 152 also occurs naturally, but its principle source is like from the others, it occurs as environmental contamination in areas in which there are nuclear accelerators, nuclear weapons manufacturing, uranium metal, plutonium metal.  

And in those remedial investigation reports there was no mention as to the reason why these an anthropogenic radionuclides were being sought.  Now if you are looking for the anthropogenic radionuclides, those arise from the breakdown of fissile material, Plutonium 239 and Uranium 235.  Why aren't you looking for them?  Those were not on the list of things tested.  

So it is of interest, then, as we try and understand what is going on in the site, that I ask the question, well, what was Stauffer Metals Incorporated doing in this industry?  And there are some facts that are in the public domain that are relevant to this joint study that we are all doing, trying to characterize this site.  They are summarized on the next page.  

First of all, Stauffer Metals of Richmond, California is one of 265 known historical U.S. fabricators of atomic weapons components.  The Department of Energy, who is the successor for the Atomic Energy Commission, classifies Stauffer Metals of Richmond as an atomic weapons employer whose employees came in contact with uranium metal.  

Three, the Energy Employees Occupational Illness Compensation Program Act of 2000 lists Stauffer Metals as a covered facility.  Four, Stauffer Metals of Richmond, California and its affiliates processed at least 700 pounds of uranium metal, including melting a five‑pound metal ingot of enriched uranium metal, 3 percent Uranium 235.  That is fissile material.  

Stauffer Metals also plated uranium metal nuclear reactor plates with niobium at the Zeneca/Stauffer Metals site for the Hanford Nuclear Weapons Facility in Richmond, Washington.  They produced metal fuel capsules for Los Alamos Laboratory's plutonium‑fueled nuclear reactor.  They had six to seven large electron gun melting/annealing furnaces.  

They harbored or manipulated radioisotopic particular materials in eight buildings at the Zeneca/Stauffer site, 80, 81, 90, 91, 94, 95, 96, and 97.  And that information, if you care to find it, and you have to look for it, is in the remediate investigation reports for Lots 1 and 2 and updated Table 1.  The Department of Merge identified 39 California institutions that were or are engaged in atomic weapons‑related activity.  And Stauffer Metals is said to have performed uranium metal melting for National Lead of Ohio, a contractor Fertile, another nuclear weapons facility, and for the Hanford Nuclear Facility in the state of Washington.  

Now all of the documents that relate to the activities of Stauffer Metals and Stauffer Temescal are available under the Nuclear Regulatory Commission of the Freedom of Information Act.  That is the nature of Stauffer Metals.  Those are the simple facts.  Now what we need to do with our radiochemistry study group is to delve deeply into these documents and any materials that Zeneca can provide to find out the actual activities that went on.  

I think this will be very helpful in trying to understand precisely the nature, and I think it goes to the question and it validates early concerns about nuclear activity on the site.  So I want to point that out.  

So we will continue with this analysis, and I think we all have to understand that we are now delving back into Cold War activities at a time when not a great deal was known about the dangers and when the risks and benefit calculations were much different than they are now.

MR. DOTSON:  Michael, do you have a range of dates in there the activity was appearing?

DR. ESPOSITO:  It goes as far back as ‑‑ named references for uranium‑enriched metal go back to 1959.  The metallurgy work that went on at the Stauffer Metals Incorporated goes back to the early 1930s.  Of course they weren't doing nuclear material, but they were a very, very advanced and talented group of metallurgists.  So this is the nature of what we had.  

Now, one of the things that I wanted to point out is that I think from here on in it is absolutely essential that every map we see of the Zeneca/Stauffer site have the footprint of the demolished buildings.  There are eight buildings, and we have to hunt and peck in order to find Building 80, which is the one site which is mentioned as the site of uranium melting in the investigation reports.  And, low and behold, we find it is exactly across the street from Krate Cabling, which is where Sherry works.  That is the extent of my report.  I think that collaboratively we will go forward with our Technology Support Committee and with others on CSV interested in fully understanding the site. 

MS. SHIPMAN:  Can I say something quick, Michael?  I know that Henry came in a little late.  I wanted you to know, if you missed it earlier, that DTSC and DHS are working with Cherokee/Simeon and Zeneca to do a historical radiological site assessment.  And that is a meeting that we are going to have tomorrow to really go over the scope of that assessment and the status and where we are there.  

DR. CLARK:  So you are going to be reporting back to this committee?  

MS. SHIPMAN:  Uh‑huh.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Will that be part of your update next month?  That is the plan? 

MS. SHIPMAN:  Yes.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Is that part of your activity update?  Okay.  Any more questions for Michael or Dorinda?

DR. ESPOSITO:  I'll make a simple announcement, then.  One of the things that we have been concerned about is the positive finding that there is metal underground at the Richmond Field Station.  This is at the bulb.  The magnetometer survey was positive.  The site was marked with a used skateboard, and we are interested in ‑‑ we were interested in conveying to the University our concern that this area warranted a better warning sign, given the possibility that there is radioactive material present.  And at least ‑‑ so I wrote to Chancellor Bergenow to this effect.  And what I have heard back is that at least for the materials that I mentioned in my letter, the demolition of the 60‑inch Cyclotron, the old radiation laboratory, the demolition of other facilities and the wastes from Uranium used in purified plutonium, that they believe that that did not go to the Richmond Field Station.  That is the extent of it.  Thank you.

MS. RIDGWAY:  So I need to clarify one thing that you mentioned.  You mentioned that future maps should show the demolished buildings? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  The footprint of the demolished buildings.  I think that is an action item for people that produce figures so we will always be able to cross‑check.

MS. PADGETT:  With building numbers, right now on some of the maps they show demolished buildings but they don't put building numbers on them.

MS. RIDGWAY:  So this would be for any group that is publishing a map, whether it is a consultant for a responsible party or anyone? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Everybody.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  Any other questions before we move on to public comment?  Okay.  So we will do public comments.

MS. BEGIN:  My name is Claudette Begin with the clerical union that represents clerical workers at Richmond Field Station.  I have a couple of comments.  Then I have some questions and concerns.  First, the other union person that comes with me wasn't able to come tonight, but we were both looking forward to coming to the meeting of the Toxics Committee when U.C. was going to come and speak.  And they delayed, and they apparently agreed to two different times and then at the last minute came up with the type of reasons they couldn't go that you could have anticipated much earlier.  

And so then the Toxics Committee came out with a report.  So I saw Greg Haet at an event on campus a couple of weeks ago, and I asked him, "So, what is happening and when are you going to go to the Toxics Committee so we can go and find out what is going on?"  And as you can imagine, as someone who is not trained in these things, trying to understand the impact on the people who work there, what it means, et cetera.  So he said that they were no longer interested or not interested in coming to the CAG, that they had no responsibility to deal with the CAG in any way, shape or form, that they were only responsible to the DTSC.  I thought that this should be part of the record that Greg Haet said this to me as the official union representative from CUE.  He indicated there would be attorneys present.  This disregards that the University has at least 100 attorneys of their own.  

So I am very grateful that the Toxics Committee has come out with a report and also that you have experts working with you to evaluate what is going on.  For those of you who don't know when there was a remediation at Zeneca a few years ago a number of our people were injured and their health was severely impacted.  And when they spoke up about it some of them were severely reprimanded and driven out of their jobs there.  And so we don't want that to happen again.  

Of course, as a result of this, people are unwilling to come forward and be a spokesperson for what they don't like to see happen at the Richmond Field Station.  So we are trying to do what we can.  People come to our meetings and then their supervisors say, "We know you went to the meeting."  That's the level of intimidation that has gone on.  And David Kim bravely serves on the CAG despite the fact that he works there at the Richmond Field Station.  

So these are my concerns.  I am very glad that since the arsenic levels are deemed very dangerous on the site that DTSC is proceeding getting that cleaned up as quickly as possible.  This is my concern, however.  What it sounds like is that it is going to be done on an emergency basis.  And we have not had a good situation with the University telling us what is going on on a timely basis.  So I personally am concerned because the University has denied that there are arsenic problems in the past, and when it was brought up that it was on the floor from workers walking into the buildings, they washed the floor and said there was no problem.  

So now that that site is going to be cleaned, and what is going to happen to the people that work in that area?  How are they told what is going on while it is happening?  I feel personally responsible since I am here and feel responsible for some of those people.  The other thing is at Lot 1, with the cleanup going on there, as I understand it from the meetings that I have come to in the last year and a half, two years, I am not quite sure how long it has been now that we have all been meeting.  I understand there has been some movement, either chemicals at least of air between Lot 1 and the University site.  And now I learn there was a lot more going back and forth than just that, that there was actual cooperation between the two sites of one moving to the other.  And I don't know why that is.  I have a question if someone can explain why this would have happened, what was being sought to happen about this, or maybe this could be answered later.  I don't know.  But that is one thing that falls under the summary of findings, right?  I don't know if you can comment on it or not.

MS. COOK:  Summary of violations.

MS. BEGIN:  Yes.  Maybe someone can explain where that data come from.  Is it something that the University and Zeneca provided on their own or something that the DTSC discovered or the CAG or the Toxics Committee or whatever.  So as the proposal for cleaning up the Lot 1 area, my concern is what is that going to have as an impact on the people who are working close by at the Richmond Field Station.  I know that there have been air sensors at the Richmond Field Station that typically malfunction.  And as a layperson we have a sort of cynical attitude about it, that they get contaminated and they don't work anymore.  The University's attitude is, no, it means there is nothing happening.  So as I said, a layperson and then concerned employer, I don't know what the situation is.  If there are air sensors that are going on in the area where this is happening, can we trust those in that process.  Now, for those of you who haven't been to the site it is a beautiful site.  It is like you are living 40, 50 years ago.  It's like walking to the 1950s American Graffiti.  So there are some people who persist in being in denial and think that it is totally safe because it looks so pretty.  How could it not be safe, right?  Of course there are others who are worried and looking for other jobs.  

So on that site they have buildings that are built ‑‑ they look like they were built around World War II.  And they have windows that make these look like armoured vehicles.  Air seeps in around them.  When there was a remediation of Zeneca, some people were saturated with all of this crap that was going on at Zeneca.  That's why we became ill.  Outdoors, cars were covered in soot‑like looking material.  Some people were allowed to go home while this was going on and some weren't.  And some people were disciplined because they were unwilling to be quiet about it, or they were concerned.  

So, of course, cleanups are a good thing.  You can't want to stay contaminated.  What is going to happen now with these two particular cleanup things, the arsenic and then also Lot 1, those are specific concerns, you know.  I am here just representing clericals, but also, really, all of the other concerned workers and their representatives and even people who don't have representatives who tell us they wish they did and they don't dare speak up.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Is there any response? 

MS. SHIPMAN:  I can give some general response, but I am not familiar with the details of the U.C. Berkeley Richmond Field Station.  But if someone is operating some kind of air‑sampling equipment or air monitors, there should be records about their operations.

MS. BEGIN:  When they stop registering because they are clogged?

MS. SHIPMAN:  They could be, but, again, someone would be maintaining that equipment and should be able to provide you with records of how they are doing that.  I am not sure who is responsible for that.  

MR. ALCAREZ:  The Bay Area Quality used to come out there on a regular basis.  He used to take testing and the guy's name is George Estes.  He was there during the '60s and the '70s, and he took constant testing out there.  But he brought it with him.  It wasn't a stationary thing.  He brought it with him.  And he would do the testing right there.  And he would read it to me and tell me and interpret it to me.  But right there ‑‑ right there, you know where the old cafeteria is across the street from the press building?

MS. BEGIN:  No, I don't have the site memorized.  

MR. ALCAREZ:  Across the street from the earthquake testing and across the street from the press building, that is where Stauffer used to release some stuff.  And it would go ‑‑ I mean, I used to work in the middle of the night to clean the parking lots on a machine.  And sometimes Stauffer would release at the middle of the night and then there were whistles and everything would go off.  But they always conveniently went off before everybody started to come to work.  I would be there at 3:00 o'clock in the morning cleaning the parking lot, and all of the whistles and everything would go off.  And around 7:00 o'clock everything shut down.  It was real quiet.  But I planted lawns out there one day, and just got them looking beautiful, and they were brown the next day.  And, like I said, right near the forest lab I planted 80 different trees there.  And every one of them burned up.  And when I dug the holes the water would come up.  There is no way that ‑‑ it just wasn't safe.  My brother worked with forest products for 36 years, and now he has come up with one of the rarest diseases.  He has the opposite of cancer.  And the medicine he has ‑‑ he could become immune to it, and he is really hurting.  

MS. LAPIERRE:  I just wanted to add one more thing.  When the report is available for public review we will be looking at it.  And one of the things that we will be looking most closely at is the air‑monitoring plan that Michelle talked about to just understand what they are monitoring for, what their plan is or what their contingency is.  And we have expertise in that, so we will be paying particular attention to that particular aspect.

MS. BEGIN:  I just want to say also that we asked for a copy of the report that they provided to you, and they told us we would have to pay $500 for a copy of that report.  When I said that DTSC had ‑‑ 

MS. COOK:  Which report? 

MS. BEGIN:  The interim. 

MS. PADGETT:  The current conditions.

MS. BEGIN:  We would have to pay $500 for a copy of that report.  They said we could see it on the Web.  We said, "What about the over‑sized plate?"  They said they would give it to us, but it's been a month and a half, and they haven't given it to us.  You can see why we don't quite trust them, at least to this point.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Let's move on to the next public comment.  

MS. MORENO:  Good evening.  My name is Doreen Moreno, and I am actually with U.C. Berkeley government and community relations office.  And thank you very much for allowing me to speak this evening.  I actually am here to be able to just respond to the summary of violations letter that was issued to U.C. Berkeley and Zeneca.  I am not a technical expert nor a scientist.  I am with the governmental community relations office.  And my office is responsible, actually, for interfacing with local, state and federal legislators on behalf of the campus and also with our surrounding communities.  And it is very important that we do actually hear from the community and certainly CAG members in regards to your concerns.  And those concerns are of the utmost importance to us.  

I am actually here to read a statement to you, and I will be happy to provide copies of that to the CAG members.  But I am not here to answer questions.  As I mentioned earlier, I am not a technical expert.  But I have been taking notes on what has been stated here this evening, and I am definitely going to communicate those to our staff members that are dealing with these issues.  So if you don't mind I would like to read the statement that I have.

I am here tonight on behalf of the University to listen to the community's concerns and to provide this statement of our position regarding the summary of violations issued to U.C. Berkeley by the enforcement branch of the Department of Toxic Substances Control on June 29th.  For several years now the University has been diligently working with many governmental agencies in an open and public manner, to clean up environmental contamination called by others, those being historic industrial predecessors on and near what is now U.C. property.  

The University's primary goal has always been and continues to be the efficient cleanup and restoration of the Richmond Field Station in a way that protects the health and safety of our employees and the surrounding community.  From the project's inception we have performed that cleanup in an effective and responsible manner first with the guidance, oversight, and approval of the San Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board and our assigned lead agency and subsequently under the site mitigation branch of DTSC.  

Throughout this project we have worked in good faith and in a fully cooperative manner with both lead agencies.  It is important to note that the June 29th summary of violations letter refers to alleged deficiencies in meeting administrative requirements.  Again, let me say alleged deficiencies in meeting administrative requirements, during the first three phases of the Richmond Field Station Program and not to any current health risk.  We are eager to meet with DTSC soon to discuss these issues and to move forward with our restoration which will benefit the Richmond Southeast Shoreline Area and the surrounding community.  

This statement here as well as the current conditions report and many other news regarding Richmond Field Station is on the Richmond Field Station website, so anyone can easily go there and get any of those documents.  And thank you very much.  I appreciate your attention and your time.

MS. COOK:  Can I make one comment?  You know the Department believes that our copies of the current condition report for the University Richmond Field Station was given to David Kim, and he has access to them.  So can you please check with David to verify that is true and if not ‑‑ 

MS. PADGETT:  That is true.

MS. BEGIN:  They are on the site Richmond Field Station.  We asked and if we could have a copy that we can look at.  In other words, we have to go take time off from work to go to Richmond Field Station to go look at it or take time off and go to the Environmental Health and Safety instead of being able to look at it on the weekend, which is when we are not working for the University. 

MS. COOK:  Does David have three copies?

MS. PADGETT:  One went to Rick.  Perhaps Rick could share his.  

MR. ALCAREZ:  Share what?  

MS. PADGETT:  The current conditions report. 

MR. ALCAREZ:  Fine.  

MS. COOK:  Would it be acceptable, Rick, for you to provide your copy of the report to the main campus so they can have access to it?  

MR. ALCAREZ:  Sure.

MS. COOK:  I knew copies had been provided.  I just wanted to make sure they had it.

MR. WEINER:  I hadn't planned on speaking tonight.  My name is Peter Weiner.  I would like to address something that the University representative said, if I could, and perhaps get their cooperation first.  Just for your information, and DTSC can probably not issue a comment, but usually an alleged violation of disposal, a point not authorized by law is not considered an administrative problem.  It is considered a substantive very serious violation.  Indeed, there are up to nine years in jail for such a violation under subsection of the law.  It is historical rather than current, so it is not a current behavior on the part of the University.  It is not an administrative violation.  

But I wanted to address another issue which because you are here and I think you are representing public relations might help clarify things.  One of the real issues that has been raised by the Union and by Rick Alcarez over time is a concern that the University may not have fully informed its employees of the hazards that they face on the job.  And there is a Cal OSHA requirement that DTSC does not administer, sometimes called the Hazards Communications Standard or the Right to Know, formally the Hazards Communication Standard, which you can find at Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 5194.  It applies to the University.  So the University has to have some hazards communication program in existence that is written.  And then you have to have documentation and you can inform the workers and train the workers what the hazards are.  So I think if the University could provide that in its program and documentation of what it has done to inform and train its workers, that might help resolve a lot of the issues raised here.  

DR. ESPOSITO:  May I ask a question?  Could you comment on the alleged harassment of employees who complained about this?  

MR. WEINER:  I can't comment on the facts. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Just on the law.  

MR. WEINER:  Labor Code Section 6310 and 6311 prevent any retaliation against employees for complaining about any OSHA violation or complaining about illness or hazardous condition.  So if that were true, then there would have been a violation of law.

MS. SIHVOLA:  Good evening.  My name is Pamela Sihvola, and I am with the Committee to Minimize Toxic Waste.  For the past 15 years our group has watch‑dogged the Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratories practice similar to what you are doing here, site characterizations and then interim remedial action and dumping of contaminated waste.  Mainly the waste has gone to the Richmond landfill.  That was the reason why I asked the question earlier.  Where, indeed, is the proposed emergency excavations of arsenic in the soil ‑‑ where is this soil going to be disposed at, so maybe I can get an answer at this moment.

MS. COOK:  If the material meets the definition of a hazardous waste ‑‑ it has to be to a class ‑‑ I don't know if one has been devised yet.  Typically it is to Kettleman Waste in California, that type of landfill.  So I don't ‑‑ 

MS. SIHVOLA:  At what point will you determine the destination for this waste? 

MS. COOK:  As discussed earlier, they are looking at additional sampling to make sure they know where it has to be disposed of.  Oh, this is for U.C. 

MS. SIHVOLA:  Well, it really applies to everything.  It applies to arsenic and the VOCs.  It applies to anything that is going to be dug up. 

MS. COOK:  If it is hazardous waste, it is going to go to Kettleman.

MS. SIHVOLA:  Located where? 

MS. COOK:  Kettleman City in Santa Barbara.  

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Kings County.

MS. SIHVOLA:  The second issue, from our experience over the past 15 years regarding air monitoring, is it is absolutely crucial that there is independent verification of every single monitor.  We know from the experience with Lawrence Berkeley Laboratory, managed by University of California, as you know, they had ‑‑ in 1991 was the very first time historically that the Department of Energy actually sent their own then, so‑called "tiger team" to evaluate the Laboratory's compliance with current environmental laws and monitoring practices.  And they found 678 violations.  And one related to the air‑monitoring issue.  They had air monitoring stations.  And, of course, we were very concerned about the tritium, active tritium emissions.  And they had tritium monitors.  They were in the booth inside.  And, low and behold, the hoses that were connected to the pump, the hoses were inside the booth.  And that was one of the violations.  But so you have to ‑‑ somebody from this group has to go independently and look at every single air monitor and see how they are operating and also look at the records.  You cannot trust anyone.  You cannot trust the University of California.  You have to verify everything independently.  And I am very glad that you have two, I understand, very well‑informed individuals as part of this group.  And I think you will probably do a very good job.  But those were the two issues that were of concern to us.  Thank you.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Any more comments?  Okay.  So the last thing before we wrap up, as we have been going through the meeting tonight I did make a few notes in terms of our agenda for next month.  And so, let's see, what I have, just so we can plan our agenda ahead of time, CSV is going to be giving a process overview, correct?  We will have no DTSC update, no presentation update, but we will still get the copies and everything ahead of time.  Will someone bring them or will you be able to get them to a CAG member ahead of time? 

MS. COOK:  We'll have copies provided a couple of days beforehand.

MS. RIDGWAY:  So probably Carolyn ‑‑   

MS. COOK:  Before you leave can you give us a mailing address?

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  The other items I have is Peter, you wanted to ‑‑ you were going to possibly talk about the legal implications of the statement of violation with respect to the CAG and anything that might involve.  

MR. WEINER:  I will try to answer questions that they have.

MS. RIDGWAY:  You were going to do a little research.  So you want to do kind of a little Q&A part for that?  Okay.  And then the last thing that I had was the bylaws.  You were going to do the voting on the point of order and then any update on that and anything else. 

MR. MUNOZ:  There will be another item under the bylaws that will be presented at the next meeting which is also an amendment.  We will present that at the next meeting as well.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  Are there any right now, any other things that should come up? 

MS. PADGETT:  Can the University be ‑‑ can we talk about asking the University to come and talk to us about the hazardous cleanup that they are going to go through? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  We can put that on the agenda and find out.  Is everyone in agreement on that?  Yes.  Okay.

MR. ROBINSON:  Who specifically could come in?

MS. PADGETT:  Sounds like Greg won't come.  An invitation needs to go out to the University to talk to us about their haz‑mat cleanup.

MS. RIDGWAY:  We can get, maybe, a contact name.

DR. CLARK:  A point of clarification.  I thought the lady said there was going to be a follow‑up on the radiological stuff.

MS. RIDGWAY:  You are right.

DR. ESPOSITO:  That is our ‑‑ for the following several weeks I suspect that we will be working on that task, and we will generate a report of the same magnitude, a 30‑page memorandum on the subject.  And this will be collaboratively done between all of the interested parties, CSV, Tox Com, DTSC, Radiological Health Service.  This is an extensive study, and it will take some time.

MR. DOTSON:  When is the next Toxics Committee?

DR. ESPOSITO:  On the 19th, a Thursday.  And the site is going to be, I suppose, usually the Shimada room.  We meet at 7:00 p.m. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Any other potential topics that are on for next time?  So we'll use this as the beginning of your agenda creation.  We'll plan on these and see who can be available for this.  Okay.  Anything else before we adjourn?

MR. MUNOZ:  Before adjourning, it is a comment.  I am glad that you are here because you have brought a lot of organization to our meetings, and I think we are accomplishing lots on the interests of everyone.  One thing that I keep getting frustrated over is this card is being ignored.  What I would like you to appreciate is that if we take the time at every meeting to review what is up there that it be followed and not ignored, I would appreciate you informing us if those of us that raise the card are out of line or if the speaker is out of line.  It is part of what we expect for you to do so that there is no animosity or uncomfortableness among the CAG.  We are all committee members with serious concerns.  And obviously there is an agenda that we would like to follow and there is a purpose for those cards.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Let me make a comment before I go on.  And so you are not being ignored.  And so it is a balance and it is a dance, I will admit, and it is a balance between allowing the person who is speaking to get their thoughts across and then moving on and interrupting and cutting them right off.  So that is a balance between respecting them as well as you.  And so you are not being ignored.  We are moving it on. 

MR. MUNOZ:  So far there has not been any response to this, even in previous meetings.  My concern is if there is ever going to be discussion or say, "Let's go back."

MS. RIDGWAY:  What I am hearing, then, is you want more of an acknowledgment that that is being heard because I am hearing it.  And so you want more of an acknowledgment of that.

MR. DOTSON:  I think the cards are very subjective, which may or may not have anything to do with what points are relevant.  I think if someone had something to say, I would like to see an evaluation of the use of the cards.  I think they are kind of indignant.

MS. RIDGWAY:  So we're going to get some other comments.  

DR. CLARK:  A point of clarification.  First of all, I think we need to define what is off point and what is not off point, because basically I don't think that I was off point, personally, tonight.  And the other thing, too, is that I think people are trying to use these cards and stifle discussion.  And we need to make it clear right now.  I am going to stay on point and I am going to say what I need to say whether you raise a yellow card or not.  I am talking to you.  I am talking to you.  I am talking to you.  I am talking to you.

MS. DODGE:  And I am talking to you.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Let's keep this respectful.  We had a really good meeting and we want to end it well.   

MS. PADGETT:  I have something that I wanted to add to the agenda.  I have something I want to add to the agenda for next August.  The University ‑‑ could I get the University representative's attention?  I have one more thing that we would like to add to the agenda.  Can we get the University's attention?  Okay.  Excuse me.  

DR. CLARK:  You heard me.  I'm telling you.  I am telling you.  

MR. MUNOZ:  Are you threating me?

DR. CLARK:  I am telling you.  

MR. MUNOZ:  Are you threatening me?

DR. CLARK:  I'm telling you.

MR. MUNOZ:  Don't point.

DR. CLARK:  You understand?  I'm telling you. 

MR. MUNOZ:  Don't point.  Don't point.  Don't point.

DR. CLARK:  You've got to mess with me.

MR. MUNOZ:  He's threatening me.

DR. CLARK:  I told you plain and clear.

MS. RIDGWAY:  We are trying to let everyone have a chance to speak, and I know that we are not always going to agree. 

MS. PADGETT:  I wanted to get it ‑‑ I want it to be on the agenda, on the agenda for this next ‑‑ for August, yes, for the University.  It is ‑‑ okay.  It is that we hear what information is shared with the University employees with regards to their health risk.  So as we go forward with these two cleanups, we have an arsenic cleanup that is immediate.  What ‑‑ Claudette, I am talking to the University person, and I want you to hear this.  We are asking what information is going to be shared or is being shared with the employees relating to these two cleanup projects coming up.  One is the arsenic, which is an immediate one, and the other relates to the Lot 1 VOC and PCB area.  So could the University come to the next meeting and tell us what they are sharing with the employees with regard to those two cleanups and any other ongoing hot‑spots that are out at the site, of which there are many.  

MS. MORENO:  Let me communicate that back to the staff.  

(The meeting was adjourned) 

RSSA CAG Meeting Minutes 7/12/07

     Page 1 of 36

